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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Ta the Mermbers of Tangsibji Hydro Energy Limited

Bhutan

Report

1.

On Financial Statements

We have audited the accampanying financial statements of Tangsibji Hydro Encrgy
Limited, which comprise the Statement of Financial Position as at December 31, 2015,
and the Statement of Comprehensive Income, Statement of Cash Flow, and Statement of
change in Equity for the year then Ended and a summary of significant accounting palicies
and other Explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

2,

3.

Management is responsible for the preparation of these financial Statements that give a
true and fair view of the financial paosition, Statement of Comprehensive Income,
statement of cash flows, and Statement of change in Equity of the Company and In
accordance with Bhutanese Accounting Standards for Phase | and other generally
accepted principles in Bhutan. This includes the design, implementation and maintenance
of internal control relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Financial
Statemnents that gives a true and fair view and is free from material misstatement,
whether due to Frauds or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial Statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the International Standards on auditing
(ISA). Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit lo obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial
Statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
Disclosures in the Financial Statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
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judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the company’'s preparation and
presentation of the Financial Statements that give a true and fair view in order Lo design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the Financial Statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have
ohtained is sufficient and appropriate Lo provide a basis for our audit opinion,

Opinion

i,

I our opinion, the financial statemenl gives the information required by the Act in the

manner so required and give true and fair view in conformity with the Bhutanese

Accounting Standards- Phase-1 and provision of the Company Act of Kingdom of Bhutan,

2000:

a. In the case of the Statement of Financial Position, of the state of affairs of the
company as al December 31, 2015,

b. In the case of the Statement of Comprehensive Income, of the total Comprehensive
loss for the year ended on that date.

c. Incase of Statement of Changes in the equity, equity as al December 31, 2015.

d. In the case of the Statement of Cash Flow, of the cash flows far the year ended on
that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirement

5:

As required by the section 75 of the companies act of the kingdom of Bhutan 2000, read
with Part Il of schedules X1V thereta (Minimurn Audit Examination and Audit reporting
requirement issued by the Royal Audit Autharity), we enclose in the Annexure A
statement on the matter specified therein to the extent applicable to the company.

As required by the Section 74(3) of the companies act of Kingdom ol Bhutan 2000, we

report that:
a. We have obtained all the information and explanation, which to the best of our

knowledge and beliefs were necessary for the purpose of our audit.
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b. In our opinion, proper books of accounts as required by law have been kept by the
company so far as appear from our examination of those books proper returns
adequate for the purposes our audit have been received; and

c. The Statement of Financial Pasition, Staterment of Comprehensive Income, Statement
of Change in equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this report are in
agreement with the books of accounts and returns.

For,Bansal&Co.

Chartered Accountants

FRN: 001113N 0AL =
. £

(D. 5. Rawat) 3@-

Parther Ls——
Membership Mumber: 0383030

Place: M e Delli
Date: =234t Maa y folb

Page?)
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Annexure to Auditors’ Repaort

The Campany has maintained proper records ta show full particulars including quantitative details and
situation of its fixed assets, As per policy of the company, Physical verification of fixed assets is heing
cartied out by the management in a phased manner, so that all items of fixed assets are physically
verified in a period of three years.

The fixed assets of the company have not been revalued during the year,

As the company s an electricity company, there are no finished goods or raw materials.
As the company is under construction phase there is po Civil, mechanical and Electrical stores and

spares. Hence the clause of Physical verification of stores and spares is not applicable.

In our apinion and according to information and explanation given to us, the procedures of physical
verification of stock (Printing & Stationery) fallowed by the management are reasonable and adequate
in relation to the size of the Company and the nature of its business,

On the basis of our examination of the inventory records, in pur apinion, the Company has maintained
praper recards for inventaory.

In our apinian, the valuation of year-end stocks has been fair and proper in accordance with the
normally accepted accounting principles and is on the same basis as in the earlier years.

According to the information and explanations given to us, there is no corporation/eompany/firm under
the same management from which a loan or an advance has been Laken by the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company had not granted any unsecured
loan to its holding company during the year 2015,

There are no parties to whom the loans and advances have been given by the Company which are
repayable with interest during the year.

Advances pranted to officers/staff are generally in keeping with the provisions of service rules and ng
excessive/ frequent advances are granted and there is no accumulation of large advances against any
particular individual.

According to infarmation and explanation given to us, in our opinion, internal control systems of the
Company are generally commensurate with its size and the volume of business to ensure campleteness;
accuracy and reliability of accounting records, to carry out the business in an arderly and efficient
manner, to safepuard the assets of the Company as well as t -ensure adherence to the applicable rules/
regulations, systems and procedures. St
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In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has
adequate system of competitive bidding, commensurate with the size of the Company and the nature of
its business, for the purchase of goods and services including stores, plant and machinery, equipment
and other assets.

A5 the company is under construction phase, The Company has not started its commercial operatian
hence the clause of selling its electricity is not applicable.

As explained to us, the Company has a procedure for determination of unserviceable or damaged stores.

As the Company is an electricity company, there is no stock of raw material or finished goods and hence
the question of ascertaining unserviceable/damaged raw material and finished goods does not arise.

The Campany is in cohstruction phase and has not started its commercial operation, maintaining
reasonable records for generation of electricity is not applicable.

Since the company does not started its commaercial operation so there is no scrap which can be realized
and hence, Clause does not apply here. Therefare, The Company is nat maintaining reasonable records
for sale and disposal of realizable scrap and The Company does not generate any by-products.

The Company has been generally regular in depaositing rates and taxes, duties, provident fund and other
statutory dues with the appropriate authorities. In our apinion, the provision for Corporate Tax is
adequate and that necessary adjustments have been made to compute amount of tax reguired under
the Rules on the Income Tax Act of the Kingdom of Bhutan — 2001

As explained to us, as on the last day of the financlal year, there was no undisputed liability payable in
respect of rates, taxes, duties, royalties and other statutory dues except as given in Note 13 of Notes to
Accounts,

Accarding to the information and explanations given to us, and on the basis of our test checking of the
accounts and other books and records, to the best of our knowledge, no personal expenses have heon
debited to the Profit & Loss account other than those payable under contractual obligations /service
rules and/or in accordance with generally accepted business practice.

Since the Company is an electricity company, this clause is not applicable to the Company. Howewver, the
Company has a reasonable system of recording receipts, issues and consumption of stores and allocating
ta the respective heads of accounts, which are commensurate with its size and nature of its business.

As the company has not started its commercial operation, Ouantitative Reconciliation of Energy
Reconciliation for accounting year in respect of electricity is not applicable.

. According to the information and explanations given to us, and on the basis of our test checking of the

accounts and other books and recards, proper approval of Board / appropriate authority is abtained for
writing off amounts due to material loss / discrepancies in physical / book balances of inventories
including stores and spares,
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In our opinian the company is maintaining the proper records regarding the allacation of man hours to
the respective jobs,

There is a reasanable system of authorization at proper levels and adequate systems of internal control
commensurate with the size of the Company and the nature of its business, on issue of stores and
allocation of materials to respective cost centers (i.e. job sites).

There is no generation of Energy since company has not started its commercial operation. Therefore this
clause js not applicable.

In aur opinian, as the campany has not started its operation. As stated above in clause 26 of this
Annexure, the guestion of credit rating of customers does not arise.

Since the Company has not started its commercial operation. Hence the Clause of sale of electricity
through commissian agents is hot applicable.

Az there is no sale of Energy during the period 2015, the clause of reasonable system af conlinuous
follow up with debtors and other parties doesn't apply here.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given ta us, the management of liguid
resources particularly cash/bank and short term depasits elc. are adequate and that excessive amounts
are not lying idle in nan-interest bearing accounts. The Company has not withdrawn any excess amaunts
as loans leading to avoidable interest burden on the company.

In our opinion and to the extent our examination reveals, the business activities carried out by the
Company are lawful and intra-vires to its Articles of Incorporation.

Investment decisions related with new projects are made with prior approval of the Board. Investments
in new projects are made only after ascertaining the technical and economic feasibility of such new
ventures.

The Campany has a suitahle budgetary cantral system.

Since the Company is engaged in the generation of hydraelectricity, no input output relationship can be
estahlished, The Company does not have a system of standard costing but operational variances are
analyzed at periodic intervals against budgeted norms.

In our opinion and to the extent revealed by our examination, the details of remuneration, commission
and other payments made In cash or in kind to the Board of Directors including the Managing Director
or to any of their relatives by the Company, directly or indirectly, are disclosed in Para No. & of Note 20
of the Notes to the Accounts.

In our apinlan and on the basis of examination of books and records, generally the directives of the
Board issued have been complied with.
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According to the infarmation and explanations given to us, the officials of the company have not
transmitted any price sensitive infarmation, which are not made publicly available, unauthorized to their
relatives / friends / associates ar close persons which directly or indirectly benefit themselves. We have
however relied on the management assertion an the same and cannat independently verily the same.

Computerized Accounting Environment:

. The company has introduced 5.A.P. from 1 lune, 2015 for accounting system along with some other

packages in operational fields like accounting, payroll, inventory management system & persanal
infarmation system. In our opinicn, erganizational and system development controls and other internal
controls are appears to be adequate relative to the size and nature of computer inslallation of the

Company.

In our opinion, the Company appears to have adequate measures and back up facilities commensurate
with the size and nature of computer installation.

The aperational controls in the Company are generally adequate to ensure correctness and validity of
input data and output infarmation.

According to the information and explanations given to us, measures to prevent uriauthorized access ko
the computer installation and files are adequate.
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General

Going Concern Problems
On the hasis of the attached Financial Statements as at 31st December, 2015 and according to the

information and explanations given to us, the financial position of the company is healthy and we have
no reason to believe thal the Company is likely to became sick in the near future.

Ratio Analysis
Financial and Operational Results of the Campany has been given in Exhibits—1-14 to this report.

Compliance with the Companies Act of the Kingdom of Bhutan.
According to the information and explanations piven ta us by the management and based on a

Compliance Checklist completed by the Company Officials, the Company had complied with the
provisions of the Companies Act of the Kingdam of Bhutan, 2000,

Adherence to Laws, Rules and Regulations
On the basis of our examination of the books and records of the Company and according ta the

information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across nor have we been informed of
any non compliance to the Companies Act of the Kingdom of Bhutan 2000 (except as mentioned above)
and the relevant laws under the Bhutan Electricity Act. In respect of complionce with other Acts
prevalent in the Kingdom of Bhutan, we cannot comment on the same in the absence of any information
provided to us in this matter. Manogement of the Company needs to establish proper and
comprehensive compliance assurance systems for all such other applicable acts.

For, Bansal & Co,
Charlered Accountants
FRM: O0T113M (,,-::'._"

@&
=
i
(g5 ¥
e

(D. 5. Rawat)
Partner
Membership Number: 083030

Place: abevs Dallu
Date: 21<+ Ha.a @28 lb



TANGSIB]I HYDRO ENERGY LIMITED

Statement of Finaneial Position for the year ended on December 31, 2005

Aaibcsanl i M,

Darticulirs e 215 2014
ASSETS
Moan- Current Asscts ) ;
Property, Flant & Equipment | ﬂﬁﬁiﬂﬁﬁ‘!ﬂ.ﬂ 0,337,475 .99
Trl.lrﬂlgill'lll.'! Agsals 2 ?,U(El,?ﬁﬁﬁg s
Capital Wark in Frogress 3 Fﬂ&.ﬁﬂ,ﬂﬂﬁlﬂﬁ 185,735,473 54
Long-Lerm Loans and Advances 4 i.&iﬁ,.?:‘xﬁﬂ.‘l']ﬂ =
Dieferred Tax Assel 3 S8 43661 1L0HL313.66
Total Mon - Current Asscls #3403, 16e7AA 203,103, 26319
Currenl Assels
Zash ane Bank Balaree i) "-I‘l..g_ﬂ'!.-?":falﬁll- 25,502, SR8 65
Ineentories 7 16144100 4517 ()
Sl Term Loans and Advances 4 G e BT 06 13,051,217 31
(Hher Current Assets 9 1,055 K02 a7 21,5251
Total Current Assets ANS, 762 THRAT | 3916107547 |
TOTAT ASSETS B4 405,925,655 242,264,339 06
EQUITY AN LTARILITIES:
Shareholders’ Equily .
Share Capital 10 1 A2 AR B 204,428 41086
Accumulated Losses 11 {B2.305,995.41) (50 55, 640,10}
Accumulated Other Compreehengive [ncame A7 9400 -
Un-amurtized Criginalion Fees 12 {55;‘35”.-55?..14] -
Total Shareholders’ Equity 40,1 68,90 5.81 21383077076
Mon- Curcent Liabilities
Loy Tesm Peowisinns 13 S0, BRI -
Tnlal Won-Corrent Linbilites 2,000,B98.00 =
Current Liabilities
Shorl - Teem Prosrisions 14 ﬁf?,.?-@-i-ﬁ.ﬂﬂ 3154590010
Oither Cureent Liabilibes 15 41,512,234.02 2E107,09.27 |
Tutal Current Liahilities 47 736,079,038 28,435 565,30
TOTAL LIABLLUTTES 44,236977.02 23.‘1335533’“
TOTALSHARFHOLDERS' EQUELY & LIABILITIES 914,!9’5,925:33. 242,264, 339.06
Bigmificant Accounting Policies il
Motes on Accounts 2

Moke referred e above foeman integral pact of the Accounis

This is the Statement of Finansial Posidon referved 1oin aur repoct of even date

A per aur repart of event date annexed

Far Bansal & Cn.
Chartered Ancownbants ——_
Firm's Hegistroton A "'

=== t!lr-r}l
¥ ._:_T,_ ——-ﬂ";\‘\{\

o AcU
(D5 Rawat) A

FCarlner
Membership Mo, (830

Date- T+ Hoyy S0 L
Taties- Wars el L

v Yeshi Wanpdi)

Chatrman, THYF & Secrotary, MoliA

I

{Iarma Chin
Managing Directar |

(Jangzhu

J

)

Chiel Trosncal O lirer



TANGSIB]l HYDRO ENERGY LIMITED

Statement of Comprehensive Tnoome for the year ended on December 31, 2005

Amvount in Mo,

Parteulars Note Mo 20115/ 214
Ineome
Cither Incoane & AA60L6A57.10 Q5837000
3,15(),667:310 A58,321.00
Expoenditure A
peration and Maintenance Expenses 17 1,UHS,BZ'9$I:I il A1LIL
Fmployess' Remunaration and Benefiks 14 14,293 715,70 168867006
Dleproeciativn EN TR 11508141
Tuvironment and Social Impact Management Dupenses 14 .3-,5023..‘0% 62 2 186, 800000
Cither Expenses n 5 971,096, 73 5840507138
29,567, 136,85 (2,580,274, 76
Ciperating Profit (Loss) (26416 470.70) i1 627.8953.70)
Profit Hefore Tax (26,416,475.75) [61,627,935.7%)
Tax Expenses
Deferred Tax Assct BAELAFT.O2 {11,00,513:.06)
Profit (Toss) for the Year (31,748, 350,81 {50,507,640,10)
Other comprehensive income:
Mctuarial Hn:i'ns {lersses) o defined benelit pension PL‘ITIE ATUSLO0 -
Tatal Other Comprehensive income A7, (184001
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR (31,711, 262.481) 150,597, 64001 00)
Lasic and Diluted Earnings pus Shaces [449) CAFR0TY
Significant Accounting Policies 21
Mates on Acenunts 22

Mot referred 1o above form an integral part of the Aveounts

This is the Statement of Finaocial Position refeoed to in our report of even date

s per o report of evenl date aniexed

For Bansal & Co,
Chartered Accountants
Pinm's Eegshration Mo, O0TT15M Folh

i

o .".'I oo

(TS Rawal) &,
Fartner M 4
tlembership Mo, O83030

ahio Yeshi Wangdi)
Chairman, 1Hyl & Seceebary, MolEA

Blanaging Direcior

LY

{Jangchu Tiema)

Dt 2P H%i 20lb
Chief Financial Officer

Flaire:- Aw ﬁﬂ_\m



TANGSIB]I HYDRO ENERGY LIMITED

Statement of Cash Flows for the peviod ended om December 31, 2015

Amounl in Nu,

Parliculars 25 2014
Cash Flows from operating aclivities
Presfit befone kecibon (20,416,479 7] (i1, 627 B53.760)
Audjusbment o
Ire-Teasibility Expenses & ] 55,136,857 72
Depreciation FHH AR 11548141
(T rescyf Do iease in lnventories {156,534 1) (LT
Imcreasely Doecrese o Okler Correnl Agsel (1,051 ﬁ‘i‘!l]._ll_h‘lf (23] 852 91
{lecrease)y Decraase in Loans and Advinees (R 51T T3.75] (1A DE12ET AL
Tnerense/ {Tecrease] in Corrend Liabilities 154455 75 28 117 70027
Inereass/ {Decrease) in Frovision 7RG F5ER0A
Tnerease/ {ecrease) in Provision|MNon-Current) ZNRT S92 -
Cash generated from COperation (05, 7, TR AD) 8,75 47 .45
Mel Cash from Operating Activitics (95,307, Ted A0 8,799 470,45
Cash flows from fnvesting activities : )
Proceedsy (Payment) of Propedy, Plant & Fquipmen (30,695 54557
Procepds, [Paymcint) Infangible Asscts FRAITA2L IR
[Proceeds) (Pay ment) of Capital work in progress (541, 500,577 59 {32 850 L BT.RD)
Mel Cash used ininvesting astivibied (633,103, 5406.13) {32, 55h 487 B
Cash (s from financing activibes
[ssaef (Bedemplion) of Share Capital TR SN
faymwent af Delgination Fees Tar Loan (35, BRELREL 7
Mel Cash used in financing ackvitics TIS400,415.21 S8, 00, (00,00
Mt increasef{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (1300119531 25,002 9RB.65
Cash and cagh equivalents ab the beginning of the pering 5 YRR 65 -
Cash and cash eguivalents af the end of Lhe period 1290179334 25,902 9RE.65
Clomponent of cash and cash equivalents:-
Cash in Hand 34,712.00 50,0000
Halances in Cunent Accounts with Banks 127 0HY, 34 25,_552,.933.'55
Tolal 12,901, 793.34 25,502, 46H.65

Mite: The ahove Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared ances fhe "hidivect Bt ® a5 sat ol o The BAST

This 15 the Casl Floves Statomwent refecved oo oo repoe of even dale
As perour reportof event dare annused

fror Hansal & o
Chartered Accomnkants

Firmi's Registeatinn Mo, T30 Mokd
—

(TS, Rawat) . ul
Parlner
Mlembwrship Mo, D330

Thale- B"l. s 1&31{:,
Pliges:- ey FD‘E/QE‘“—':

(R Chhaopleel

el el Wminr‘]i:l
Chairman, THy L & Seeretary, MoBA

Managimg Divgefor

{Jangehii Dema)
Chicf Financial Ciifice




TANGSIB]I HYDRO ENERGY LIMITED

Statement of Chamges of Fauity for the period ended on December 31, 2015

Aarsoaitk e N,

Decembear 2015

Actuarial Tes
A e Hetained Un-amariized
Mumberaf Equity Share gain on e T iy R
Share Capital | Capltal gumgd- | Temamiatnol f{EOdelacon || ©TotbRin:
| Benetits. -ated losses) Fees
(pening Halance 264,284 11 26 E 478,410,845 (30,597 640.20) - VAN, TELTG
Mumber of share capital = ei Q0.0
Loss for the period (31,795 356,.81) - (31,708,356.81)
[n-amerlized Olrgination
Pees N M T | (36,950,559,.14) [, 5050, 554, 14)
et eomprehenaive (losa)
income For the period A70000 > = el
Issued share capital for the :
s 755,000,000.00 - - BRI
Lialauie 85 al o 10194784 | 101942841086 | 57.004.00 [A2,305 006.01) | (36,050,550,14)

Q00,1 0654581

‘I'his is the Statement of Changes in Equity referred to in our report of even date

As per o report of sven ] date anmexed

T Ramisal & Co,
Charlered Accountants

Finn's Repgistration No, 01113 MoEA
U0

"

[T0.5, Rawat)
Fartmer
Membership Mo, 083000

Liate:- 'll'f'“‘ “%I CUAR
Flacy:- HM Dol 'u..\:!

sho Yeshi Wangdi)
Chatrman, THyE & Secrelary, bdalid

(Karma Chh
Melanaging

{langchu

)

irctiar

it )

Chicf Pinancial Officer




TARGSIE] HYDRO EMNERGY LIMITED

Pvobe 1, 3 8.3 Property, 'lant & Uguipmant, Intangible Assets and Capital Yorks in Progress

GROGE BLOCK NHEFRECIATION NFT BLOCK {BEA]
Upening Upenlng Cluslng
i Maanceas ol | Additions | Dispesal “J::m m:::;:’ Balane 5 al ::lf.:ul.:: Tepissal | Adjustments | balanes asag N;?::':u:’"l
SIANRNE [LIESTRRIIE L] Mg
EIVEL STHUCTURES 171, 8E0 80 345, 50341 . - E1H.503H] 135802 B RIH3Z - - I01ET.34 S04, 79 AT
Ruililings - Me, 31 A1 SAANLE] - 36 A2 g2 SIMAF AN
Oher Covill St lures T - 172ARLN 155802 ERg L] 7 im s 165150 0K
TS & S AFETY BOUPRENTS 13, R 2761,241.95 3 E 2,744441.75 h14 16,5970 = = IR AZEAR 20TH, LAY
Teal sind I'fani 13,0001 272173 A E B o e ) l&, 29830 eI 2RI RLR
ITHFR ASLITS Rk 5070 | ansea 10nar % B wEENEAD [ 1ATI0S | wera dd0Rd % 5 2,708,060 49 AR HLEAT I
Ui Equty 1 LAZ,SE00D B3, LT B S0 ST ED LUEF3A FEISRL1D 12677043 EIR&07.3T
Faamibisir A Ficlizne L4, 26 (RRCRIT ] 1,364 1308 14,5500 ol dilay 43, RIL0G 1,2301,545.23
irlkhoke 4310, 71759 Je0ET EME D 1, 17RA IR TS nl, WAL | EUFALGLT] F0AF,559.0% 2E H2 AR 75
InifurirvuaRicme Tes himibogic 1L079,175.80 160480458 2,714.071.23 4170054 4T TR A1 25 el | HETEY
Coeral Aastls T T o T = 5NN ThelAR | 1EAARY VSRR A5
Talal Tangilile Aseii BASLENTAY AR G5 BR80T & - A0, B4R TIE0RLA2 | 3703 45ERF - - A515750 326 A3 ARLNE
L Prevvinion dir Linssy <
Bl Asts RASLARTAR | ALFISAMENT - - ANEAEARE | D15 M42 | BTOOARERE - - AATETEN2E AR Z10AR,NE
INTANGIHLE ASSITTS < =
Frdnrmalinn gl Technaingy - f '.".Ki;_.ﬂl In TAITRILIG - T ARsAT TSNS =7 T 5
Lrma: Privesdon for Ensses c = £
- TRITAZL A - - TAITARILIA - TARNRE 4T - - T8 0Ah AT 02175 6
CAPFTAL WORES TN FROGHLES -
Capital Works m Frogrss (Tangibkle Asaels) REAGRTEE 1 | 50 IE AT AN FAK A1, M 84 5 - : £ _ 458,541 200,01
Capilal Works m Progress (inlanghie A | VEETEMGAD - PR APE TS A - PRLERMS AR
Lss: Faonision fnr Losses - x
1R, TAS 470,54 | 545,004 47 49 - - TAILATS,W5240 - - - - - T b 9153 00
LEAND TIFIAL THLARR S | Adn b4 LineR d . S2ETREIATAR LB WAz | 44572533 a . LAILALETS AT4,171,370.50

Tk O il tvlal depreciation, Mu. 855,274.85 was Looked 1o WIP




TANGSIB]I HYDRO ENERGY LIMITELD

Note forming part of Accounls

Particulars T, M.
2015 2014
Mote 4: Long Term Loans and Advamees
Adwances 4823, 300,00 3 -
4 52336000 -
Mute 5 Deferred Tax Assets/{Liability}
[eferred Tax Assel 5 Al 436,64 103365
s, 456,64 11,080,313.66 |
Mok 6: Cash & Banl Balances
Cash in Hand LFI2.00 S0,000.00
lalances with Banks in Currenl Accounts:
Bank of Mhulan 12,867,081, 34 15,352 88865
12.501,745.34 25,902, 958.65
Moke 7: Inventorics
Slowes & spares L61 A1 4 E17.00
T61,A41.00 4,917.00
Pote B Short Tenn Toans and Advances
Bl Advance BEL AL 77
Advance to Supplicr / Conlracior 09,560,191 {1 14,990 £72 54
89,560,1.91.006 13,051,217.31
IWabe 9: Other Current Assets
Prapaid Expenses 192,442.21 11,231.00
Lieposits- hiscellaneous 015 LU 000,00
Chlgr: Becelvabies 1,266,260.76. 130,721.91
1,953,692.97 2L, 552.91
Mote 10: Share Capital
Authorized Share Capital
50,000,000 equity sharesd [Mu. 1,00 pee shae 5,000,000,000.40 5000000800
Subderibed Share Capital
AE000,000 aquity shares @ Ma, 100 per shose ane subscrited by DGPC 3..-E|IIIEI..',I]’|JEIA.1IJIJ.UU ,A00,000,000.00
bt Paid - wp Share Capital is 10,184,284 Fauity Shares
M, 100 per Shave Lu_ﬂrizﬁr‘ilﬂaﬁﬁ' 264,428, 410,86

D 428 41086




TANGSIB]l HYDRO ENERGY LIMITED
Naote forming parl of Accounts

Graoup Investment Heserves
{ldietion during the year)

Accumulated Losses
Opening Balance

150,557, 540:10)
Clasing Balance {50,597,640.10)
Sodel: Transferred from Profil & Loss '{331'}?95,35513.351} (50,597, 640.10)
Less: Appropriation to Croup lnvestitent Reserve :
(K2, 395,9495.91) {50,597,640.10)
Grhedule 12 Un-amortized Oripination Fees _
Un-amorkized Chigination Feeg (36,950,559, 143 ]
(26,950,550.14) |
Mote 13: Tong Term Provisions
Provision for Expenses (15, G500
Prowvigion [or Grealuity 05 425,00
Provision for Leave Encishment RS A2 00
2,000,808 00 | -
Mole 14: Short - Term Provisions _
[Meonvision for Expenses S 2R
I'rovvistont for Gl'-‘llui!._',.' AR 106, 349,95
['rovision for Leave Bocaslonent ALEL.O0 1970575
Peowision for LTC ‘-Lﬂ;ﬂiﬂ o 70,403.33
23 B B A15859.03
Mate 15: Other Corrent Liahilities
Sr_-cu_rit}r [eposil- Suppliers & Othess = 1 124),0000.0)
Sundey Craditors aﬂjﬂﬁ'ﬁ A7 =1
Outstanding Liabilities o contractons | M 35,474 577,94
Outstanding Liahilities for expenses S AR 4
Sundry Diahilities 'J:H-ﬁl.glli.ﬁ? i 525!%245-&3
Tax Daducted at Souree - Payalle Jaua71 00 RA5.00
S il il
41,612,234,02 28117,709.27
MNote 16: Other Incomes
Huuse Fuent Revavered- Employes,/ Others L B AN
Wiscellanenus Receipts 2,817,997,10 2,321.00
Sale of Tender forms 36,000,000 45, [0
AL50,657.10 | 438,321.00




TANGSIBJI HYDRO ENERGY LIMITED
Note forming part of Accounts

Mole 17: Operation & Maintenanoe Expenses y
Rt Cival Shruclures ll,ﬂ‘lllﬂﬂ
Rt Flectin-Mechanical 756,160 =
Réehd Vehicles FRT106,19, Al 64141
R h-Offiee Eynipments 1245200
Réehd-Information Technalogy 190,223.41
Consumglion af General llems LTBFLEN
1,055, 8205 all A1
Mote 18: Emplovess Remuneration & Benefils
Salarics and Wipges I R GO0,
Lmpluyer's Contribulion o Provident Fund 058,469, 16 63,524,000
Staff Welfare Expenses 200,850,00 3
Caratuily Lxpenses S03.711.74 48, 253.5{
Leave Encashment 5661040 6316723
Terminal Benefits 4795171 .
Professional ‘|raining 834 815,60 3700.00
Liveries 15, 525,00 2322000
1 save Travel Comcession IEE,.‘}IS::'!E] 36,583 33
G4 Insurance i H0512
Commmtanication Allowance 944,01 ), 955 00
Sl P 1,259,654 173,240.00
Housing Allowance 1,250 650,34 173, 244,00
PR Al v 1,663,199.17 2173, 485001
Special Allowince zn’a&,_’*.g;i:;_sg_ B 312,433,00
14,392, 71576 1,AR8,670.05
Mate 19: Environment and Secial Impact Management Expenscs
Bindiversity Conservation rogram 3“”?5*'1__35‘.”[' LA
Compensintion .'.'!Lﬁ-?.titi'ﬂ'..ﬁz I?I],.'F'F".'T. 2
3,609,044.62 21760000
A




TANGSIB[I HYDRO ENERGY LIMITED
Note forming part of Accounls

¢ 'J-U'Dj&n:jj

Mote 20k Other General Administrative Expenses

Adverlisement and Publicity 17 405.50 H4 46270
Audil Fees & Fapenscs lﬂ&;l'?:ﬁ.ﬂ'ﬂ 2o
Bank Charges 1948400 2,220,010
Board Mesling Expenses LA0FELL 1a5n01.00
Buaoks & Deriocicals G20
Eonsultancy Chaepes . 1, 340,000.00
Corporate Socia] Responsibility A Fan00 401,000,000
[iractors' Sitting Fees E-E.ri,'.ﬂ.l]'ﬂ.l][]‘ 308,6514.00
Fntestainment Fm,7a4.00 176,730,00
Flire Charges FTLNTOAT SILGTETS
Licesise Faa 19,784.93 BO0)
Oither Fxpensos 1,235,628.79 11522700
Postiagee and Telegram 59)1@3:] 00,00
[Mrimbiesg and Stalinnerny G06,362.00 137 G520
Hent 655, 260,00 33,400.00
‘lelephone and Fax 35L745.05. T acon
Iravel 1212002448 244,511.00
Utility Charges A A8 HEHHTG
Pre-Feasibility Expeivsos - B5.136,857.72

6,971,095,73 58,405,07L.34

SSAL g™
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TANGSIBJL HYDRO ENERGY LIMITED
Notes forming part of Accounts for the year ended on 319 December 2015

Mature of Operations

Tangsibji [lydro Encrgy limited (Herein after referred to as THyF or the Company) is a
company formed under the laws of Bhutan on 254 April, 2014, 11 IyE is a 100 % subsidiary
company of Druk Green Power Corporation Limited, for the implementation of the 118 MW
Nikachhu Iydropower Project. The company is engaged in generation of hydro electrical
energy and is under construction and no commercial operations have been started by the
Company and expected Scheduled Commercial Operation Date is July, 20119.

Note 21: Significant Accounting Policies

1. Basis of Preparation

These financial slatements have been preparad to comply in all material respects with the
Bhutanese Accounting Standards (BAS) Phase T lo the extent is applicable to the company
and the relevant provisions of the Companies Act of the Kingdom of Bhutan, 2000, The
financial statements have been prepared under the historical eost convention on an accrual
basis excepl as stated otherwise. The accounting policies have been consislently applied by
the corporation in compliance of Bhutanese Accounting Standards.

The preparalion of financial statements in conformity with Bhutanese Account ing Standards
requires the use of estimales and assumptions hat affect the reported amaunts of assels and
liabilities, and disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and
the reporied amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Although these
estimates are based on management's best knowledge of current event and actions, actual
results ulimately may differ from those estimates,

2. Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities or income and expenses are offset and the net amount
presented in the Statement of Financial Position when, and only when, the entity has a legal
right and is allowed by the standard o offset the amounts and in tends either 1o setile on a
net basis or to realize the assets and settle the liability simultaneously.

3. TFuncHomal and Presentation Currency

Items included in the financial statements of the company are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the company operales the functional
currency of THYE is Ngultrum (Nu.) and alsa for presentation currency.

4. Use of Estimatces

The prepatation of Financial Statements in conformity with BAS requires management to
make judgments, estimates and assumptions (hat affect the application of accounting
policies and the reporied amounts of assels, liabilities, the disclosures of contingenl asschs
and contingenl linbilities at the date of financial statements, income and expenses during the
period. Actual results may differ from these estmates. Istimates and  underlying
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions te-accounting estimates are

L /8
\\ T, .‘:_.:.-{.
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TANGSIEJI HYDRO ENERGY TIMITED
Nates forming part of Accounts for the year ended on 31# December 2005

recogmized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in futuwre periods which are
affected.

Foreign Currency

‘I'ransactions in foreign currency are Initially recognized in the financial statements using

exchange rates prevailing on the date of transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated Lo the relevant functional currency at the
exchange rates prevailing at the reporting date. Non-monelary assets and liabililies
denominated in foreign currencies that are measured al fair value are retranslated to the
funchional currency al the exchange rate at the dale that the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in a foreign currency and measured at historical
cost are translated at the exchange rate prevalent al the date of transaction. Poreign currency
differences arising on translation are recognized in the Statement of Comprehensive lncome
for determination of net profit or loss during the period.

Tnvestments

The BAS relating to financial instrument are yet to be implemented in Bhulan as per phase
wise implementation announced by AASPB. Therefore, generally accepted accounting,
principal relaling to recognition and measurement for the other investment are followed.

The investments intended lo be held for not more than one year are classified as
current/short term investments and investment other this are classified as long term
investment in a separate financial stalements. Long-term investments are stated at costs and
provision is made to recognize a decling, other (han temporary, in the value of long term
investments, Current/short term investments are carried at cosl or market rates whichever
ig less, on individuoal investmen! hasis,



TANGSIBJI HYDRO ENERGY LIMITED

Notes forming part of Accounts for the year ended on 31% December 2015

7. Property, Plant and Equipment

B

br.

Praperty, plant and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
whete applicable accumulated impairment losses. Cost includes expenditure thal is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. The cosl of self-construcled assets
includes the cost of materials, direct labour and any other costs directly attributable
to bringing the asset lo a working condition for its intended use, and the costs of
dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site on which they are
located.

Cost of software that is integral to the functionality of the related equipment is
capitalized as part of that equipment.

Gains and losses en disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment are
determined by comparing the proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of
property, plant and equipment and are recognized net within “other income / ofher
expenses” in stalement of income.

Subsequent Expenditure

'"The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment ts recognized
in the carrying amount of the item only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associaled with the item will flow to the company and the cost of the item
can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognized,
All other costs incurred for the running and maintenance of property, plant and
equipment are expensed off in the year m which they are incurred.

Depreciation

Company provides depreciation on property, plant and equipment on straightine
methad at the rates prescribed in the scheduled B of Tariff Delermination Regulation,
2007 of Bhutan Flectricity Authority considering the useful lives of the assels,

" Assel Rates
Civil Struchires 3.23%
Clectromechanical Equipments 3.33%, 5%(Diecscl Generators), and

20% (Runners)

Fire Fighting and Safety Equipments.  10%
Gencral Assets 20%
Information and Technology  20%
Equipments
Wachineries 15%
Oiffice Equipments 20%
Tools and Plants 10%
Vehicles 15%
Land 0%
Furniture and Tixtures 10%




TANGSIBJI HYDRO ENERGY TTMITED
Naotes forming part of Accounts for the year ended on 31+t December 2015

Ihe depreciation for the property, plant and equipment purchased / constructed
during the year is pro-rated on the basis of actual number of calendar days from the
date asset has been put to use.

The asscls costing Nu. 500 and below is considered as consumables and charged as
Expenses.

8, Intanpible Assels

a. Intangible assets having finite useful lives are measured at cost less accumulated
amuortization and accumulated impairment losses, Cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the intangible asset.

b. Subsequent Lixpendilure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow o the company and the cost of the item
can be measured reliably. All other expenditure, including expenditure on internally
generated goodwill and brands, are expensed off in the year in which they are
incurred.

¢. Amaortization of Intangible Assets with finite useful lives

Amortizalion is recognized in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estima ted

useful lives as per the rates as has been prescribe in the scheduled BB of Tariff

Determination Regulation, 2007 of Bhutan Electricity Authority for all software.

9, Capital Worlk In Progiess

Tupenditure on material, labor, contract expenses and directly aliributable cost such as
employee costs and overheads, project management expenses incorred during consbruction
period is included in CWIP till these are capitalized for executing the particular project.
Indirect expenditure and overheads incurred is expensed off and are notclassified as CWIP,
Capital-Wark-In-Progress alsn reptesents, rost incurred on Design, Engincering and
Detailed Project Report and these expenses shall be capitalized upon the commencement of
rommercial generation of enargy.

10, Leases

At the inceplion of a lease, the lease arrangement is classified as either a finance Ipase or an
operating lease, based on the substance af the lease arrangement.

a, Assets on Operaling Lease
Asscls on operating lease are not recognized as part of company’s assel, Payments

made for operaling leases are recognized in profil or loss ona straighl-line hasis aver
the term of the lease,

T.and on lease is classified as aperating lease as allowed by the standard.

L ———




TANGSIB[I HYDRO ENERGY TLIMITED

Notes forming part of Accounts for the year ended on 31+ December 2015

11. Impairment - Non-Current Assets

The carrying amount of the non-current assets, vther than long tenn investment, capital
work in progress and deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine
whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the assel's
recoverable amount is estimated,

An impairment luss is recogmized if the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating
umil exceeds its estimated recaverable amount. Impairment losses are recognized in profit or

loss.,

12. Employee Benefils

Employee benefits are accrued m the period in which the associated services are rendered
by ernployees of the company as detailed below:

il.

h.

Defined Contribution Plan (Pension and Provident Fund)

As required by National Pension & Provident Fund, both the employee and
emplayer make monthly contributions to the provident fund, which is a Defined
Conttibution Plan, equal to a specified percentage of employee’s basic salary. The
company has no further abligations under the plan beyond its manthly contributions.
The company does not have any legal or construclive obligation to pay further
contributions if the Fund does not have sufficient assets to pay all of the employee’s
entitlements, Obligation for contributions to the plan is recognized as an employee
benefit expense in comprehensive mcome when the contribution o the Tund
becomes due.

Defined Benefit Plans (Graluily)

In accordance with the THyD service rule, the company provides for gratuity, a
defined benefit retirement plan (the Gratuity Plan) covering all employees. The
Graluity Plan provides a lump sum payment to vested employees, at retirement ar
termination of employment, an amount based on the respective employee’s last
drawn salary and the years of employment with the company. The compa ny’s net
obligation in respect of the gratuily plan is calculated by estimating the amount of
future bencfits that the employees have earned in return for their service in the
current and prior period; that benefits is discounted to determine its present value.
The calculation is performed by a qualified actuary using the projected Unit Credit
Method and amount of abligation is provided in statement of comprehensive
income. The defined benefit plans (gratuily) is unfunded.

Short Term Denefits

The undiscounted amount of short term employee benefits expected lo be paid in
exchange for the service rendered by employee are recognized as expense during
the period when the employee rendered the services. These benefils includes
allowances and compensated absences.




13.

14

15.

16.

TANGSIB]THYDRO ENERGY LIMITED
Notes forming part of Accounts for the year ended on 31# December 2015

d. Earned Teave Encashment

The employees of the company are entitled for earned leave. The employees can
carry forward a portion of the unutilized earned leave subject to the limit set as per
ITHyE service manual and utilize it in future periods or compensated in cash during
retirement o termination of employment for the unutilized accrued earned leave
bascd on the salary at the time, The company recognizes an obligation for earned
leave by determining the liabilily equal to the accrued unutilized carned leave as on
the date of reporting based on the salary on the reporting date.

e, (ther Terminal Benefit

As per company’s HR manual, the employee who have rendered minimum tive years
of service are entitled to one momth basic pay as repatiiation allowance, transler
granis and carriage charges of personnel effects to the place of destination as
specified in THyE Service Rule.

The company recognizes other terminal benefit obligations of the employee provided
by a qualified actuary using the projected Unit Credit Method and amount of
phligations are provided in statement of comprehensive income.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized if, as a result of a past cvent, the entity has a present legal or
constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is prabable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to seltle the obligation. If the effect of the time valuc of
money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre tax ralte that reflects, where
appropriate, the risks specific to the liability, Where discounting is used, the increase in the
provision due to the passage of time is recogmized as a finance cost. A provision for onerous
contracts is recognized when the expected benefits to be derived by the entity from a
contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under the contract,

Revenur

Revenue from the export of energy is measured at the price at which Power Purchase
Agreements (PPA) has been entered into and domestic sale of cnergy is measured afb the
tariff rate determined by Bhutan Electricity Authority, These rates have been considered as
fair value for the purpose of measuring the revenue.

Other Income

Other income comprises of revenue from sale of tender documents, liquidated damage and
pucsthouse room rents.

Borrowing Cosls

Borrowing costs far the purposed of BAS 23 “Borrowing Cost” has been determined as
under in compliance with the approved Accounting Policy for the Asset Accounting,
pending the implementation of 1FRS 9 which is 1equired 1o be implement in Phase 3; 2018-
2019: ARBAL ¢
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TANGSIBJTHYDRO ENERGY LIMITED
Notes forming part of Accounts for the year ended on 31% December 2015

i) Tnterest and commitment charges on bauk borrowings and other shorl Leym and
long-term borrowings;

ii) Amorlization of discounts or premiums relating to borrawings;

iii) Amortization of ancillary costs ineurred in connection with the arrangement of
borrowings;

iv) Finance charges in respect of assels acquired under finance leases or under other
similar arrangements; and

V) Exchange differences arising from (oreign currency borrowings to the extent that
ey are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs.

The borrowing costs thal are directly attribulable to the acquisition, construction or
production of a qualifying asset (A qualifying asset is an assel that necessarily talkes a
substantial period of time Lo gel ready for its intended use or sale) are added to the cost of
fhose assets until such time when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the
qualifying asscl for its intended use or sale are complete,

All other borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the period in which they are
incurred,

Inventories

a. Tnventories consist of stores and spares held mainly for repair & mainlenance and are
valued at lower of cost or net realizable value.

b, Cost is calculated on Weighled Average Price Method and comprises expenditure
incurred in the normal course of business in bringing such invenlories to its present
location and condition.

¢. Obsolete and defective items of inventory are identified at the time of physical
verification of inventories and where necessary, adjustment is made for the same,

d. Stock of salvaged and scrapped materials has been stated at nil value, The amount
realized on disposal of such stock is accounted for under Other Income.

e, As the corporation is engaged in the generation of clectricity, there are no finished
goods or raw materials.

f.  Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business
less estimaled costs of selling.

Claims for Escalation/Liquidated Damages

Suppliers’/ Contractors’ claims for price escalation are accounted for to the extent such
claims are accepled by the company, Claims for liquidated damages against the
suppliers/contractors are taken as income when these are probable for recovery as per the
contraclual terme.

Ineame Tax

Current 'Lax is delermined in respect af laxable income for the year based on applicable
rates and laws under lncome Tax Act of the Kingdom of Bhutan 2001 and Rules on the
Tncome Tax 2005, Income lax expense comprises current and deferred tax.

Deferred tax is recognized using the balance sheet method, providing for temporary
differences between the carrying amount of assels and labilities for financial reporting
purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred {ax is measured at the lax
rates that are expected to be applicd to temporary differences when they reverse, based on
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TANGSIB[I HYDRO ENERGY LIMITEL
MNotes forming part of Accounts for the year ended on 314 December 2005

the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date, Deferred
tax assets and liahilities are offsct il there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
liabilities and assets, and they relate to income laxes levied by the lax authority on the
taxable entity, but they intend to settle current tax Habilities and assets on a net basis or
their tax asscts and liabilities will be realized simultancously. A deferred fax asset is
recognized to the extent that il is probable thal fulure taxable profits will be available
against which the temporary difference can be utilized.

Deferted tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that the related tax benefil will be realized.

Contingent Liabilities and Conlingent Assets
Contingent liabilities is not recognized but disclosed for all passible obligations thal arises

from past ovents and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence o non
accmrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the enlily,

Contingent asscts is also not recagnized but disclosed for all possible assets that arises from
past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non occurtence
ol one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity.

Operating Segmenls

BFRS 8 Operating Segments requires a disclosure of operating results segment wise, the
entity has only one operating segment from where it earns the revenue Le, sale of energy
and therefore no such reporting is applicable (o the entity.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

In the cash flows statement, cash and cash equivalenls include cash in hand, demand
depasits with banks, other short - term highly liquid investments with original maturities
al three months or less,

Earnings Per Shares (EP5)
Basic and Dilutad EPS is calculated in accordance with BAS 33, Basic earnings per share is
campuled by dividing the profit or loss atiributable to equity holders by the weighted

average mumber of equity shares outstanding during the period. Since there is no potential
equity, diluted and basic camnings per share are same.

Comparalive Information

Prior year figures have been restated, regrouped or reclassified to comply with BAS.




TANGSIB]T HYDRO ENERGY LIMITED
Notes forming part of Accounts for the year ended on 31% December 2015

Mote 22: Notes to Accounts

—_

L |

The authorized share capital of the Company is N, 5.000 billion (50,000,000 equity share @ N,
100 pet share) and 36,000,000 share are subscribed by Druk Green Power Corporation Limited
and as on December 31, 2015 the total paid up capital is Nu. 1,019,428 million (10,194,284 equity
share @ Nu. 100 per share),

DEPC as the project investigator and developer has so far spent Nu, 1,019.428 million on the
project and has 100% stake in THyE.,

The Power Purchase Agreement has been signed wilh PTC India Limited on November 20, 2014
at New Delhi, India. The take or pay PPA covering 8% of the saleable energy is for a period of
25 years,

The Indian Commercial Bank {ICB) has sanctioned a loan of Nu. 3,530,000,000.00 and the
company has paid arigination fees of Nu. 39,589,884.78 During the year, however the loan has
not been disbursed by the lender.

The company had, with effect from 1st January, 2015, adopled Bhulanese Accounting Standards
(BAS) 19, Employee Benefits for all shorl Llerms benefits and long term benefits {(Gratuity, earned
leave, repatrialion allowance, transfer grants and carriage charges),

The valuation in respect of all long term benefits has been carried out by independent actuary,
Royal Insurance Corporation of Bhutan, Thimphu, Bhutan. The present value of the defined
benefit obligations, and the related current service cost and past cost, were measured using the
Projected Unit Credit Method. The amount of obligations is provided in statement of
camprehensive income.

Defined Benefit Plans

Valuation in respect of Graluity and other employee benefits has been carried out by a qualificd
actuary using the projected Unit Credit Method,

The disclosures as provided by the actuary are as given below.

The table below shows a summary of the results for the year ended 31% December 2015.



TANGSIBJI HYDRO ENERGY LIMITED
Naotes forming part of Accounts for the year ended on 31 December 2015

In Ngultrums
Al. Change in Defined Benefit Obligation (IDBO) 31/12/2015
B0 at the beginning of the reporting period 106,350
Current service cost 1,028,007
Interest cosl it tall
Past service cost -
Benefits paid from plan assets -
Benefits paid by employer (27,143)
Actuarial (gain)/loss due to plan experience (87,094)
Actuarial {gain)/loss due to change in demographic -
asslmplions
Actuarial (gain)/ loss due to change in financial -
assumplions
DBO at the end of the reporting period 1,028,007
“A2. Change in fair value of Plan Assets 31/12/2015
Fair Value of Assels al the beginning of reporting pm'i:::-:f -
Interest income on plan assets -
Employer contribuiions -
Benefiks paid -
Relurn on plan assets greater or (less) than discount rale -
Assets at the end of the reporting period -
A3, Stalement of Profit or Loss 31/12/2015
Current Service Cost 1,028,007
Mast service cost -
Mel interest cost on net DB liability / {asset) 7,880
MNel cost for the year recognised in Profit or Loss 1,035,893
Ad, Other Comprehensive Tncome (OCT) F1z2/2m5
Actuarial (Gain)/ Loss due to liabilily experience (87,094}
Achiarial (Gain)/Loss due to liability assuwmption -
changes
Retuim on plan assets (Creater) or Less than discount rate -
Remeasurement (Gain}/Toss recognized in OCL (87,094)

s

'{“‘-“.



TANGSIBJI HYDRO ENERGY LIMITEL
Notes forming parl of Accounts for the year ended on 319 December 2015

AR, Defined Benefit Cost 31/12/2015
Current servico cost 1,028,007
Past service cost -
Net interest cosl on net DB lability/ (asset) 7BE6
Remeasurement (GGain)/ Loss recognized in OCI (A7,094)
Total Defined Benefit Cost S 8,800
Abh. Development of Net Financial position 31/12/2M5
Defined Benefil Obligation {1,028,007)
Fair Value of Plan Assels -
Funded Status - (Deficil)/Surplus (1,028,007)
Met Defined Beneflit Asset/ (Liability) (1,028,007)
A7. Reconciliation of Net Financial position 3 nmﬁ
Net Defined Benefit liability / {assct) at the beginning of 106,350
reporting period
Amount recognized in the profit or loss 1,035,893
Amount recognized in the OCT (87,094)
Employer confributions -
Benclits paid by employer (27.743)
Net Defined Benefit lability / (asset) at the end of
reporting period 1,028,007
AB. Expected Benefit Payments for the year ending mn;urﬁf
December 31, 2016 76,684
December 31, 2017 128,617
TDecember 31, 2018 186,898
Drecember 31, 20149 406,735
December 31, 2020 315,604
Docember 31, 2021 to December 31, 2025 3,781,004
T
TR
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TANGSIBJI HYDRO ENERGY LIMITED
Notes forming part of Accounts for the year ended on 318t December 2015

AS. Estimated T'erm of Liability (Years)

19.46

A10 Sensitivity Analyses

In Nu.

1. Discount Rale
Buse Discount Rake of 8.5%

Diseownt rate of 9% (+0.5%)
Discount rute of 8% (-0.5%)

2. Salary Lscalation Rate
Rase Salary Escalation Rate of 10%
Salary Escalabion Rataof 1% (+1 e

Salnry Escalahion Rate of 9% (-1%)

3. Allrifion Rate

Base Attrition Rate of 3.5%
Attrition Rate of 4.5% (+1%)
Attrition Rateaf 2.5% (-1%)

Defined Benefit

Obligation
1,028,007
947 BEA
1,117,390

1,028,007
1,217,144
A71,650

1,028,007
9354923
1,135,105

MNet Effect on
DBO

(80,449)
BY, 383

189,137
(156,351)

(92,085)
107,008

Al. Leave benefit scheme

In Noultrums

1. Change in Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO) 31,/12/2015
B0 at the br_-ginniﬁg of the reporting period 129,706
Current service cos| 1,015,723
Interest cost {3,263)
Past service cost -
Benefits paid from plan assets :
Renefits paid by employer (336,168)
Actuarial (gain)/loss due to plan expetience 208,724
Actuarial (gain)/loss due o change in demographic assumplions -
Actuarial (grain)/loss due to change in financial assumptions -
DBO at the end of the reporting period 1,015,723
2. Statemenl of Profit or Loss 32205
Current Service Cost 1,015,723
Past service cost -
Nel interest cast an net DB liability / (asset) (3,262)
Remeasurcment (Gain)/ Loss 209,724
Net cost for the year recognised in Profit or Loss 1,222,186




TANGSIB]JL LYDRO ENERGY LIMITED

Nates forming part of Accounts for the year ended on 31 December 2015

3. Development of Wet Financial position 31/12/2015
Defined Benefit Obligation {1,015,723)
Fair Value of Plan Assets -
Funded Status - {Defict)/Surplis (1,015,723)
MNet Defined Benefit Asset/(Liability) {1,015,723)
4, Reconciliation of Net Financial position 311202015
"Nt Defined Benefit lability / (asset) at the beginning of reporting 129,706
period
Amount recognized in the Profit or Loss 1,222,186
Employer contributions -
Benefits paid by employer (330,168)
Net Defined Benefit liability /(asset) at the end of reporting
period 1,015,723
5. Expected Benefit Payments for the year ending Amount
Decernber 31, 2006 A1841
Drecember 31, 2017 33,8504
Tlecember 31, 2018 A6,008
December 31, 2009 51,832
December 31, 20240 40,098
December 31, 2021 4o December 31, 2025 298,328
6. Estimated Term of Liability (Years) 15.81
7. Sensitivity Analyses In MNu.
Defined Bencfil Met Etfect on
1. Discount Rate Dbligation Do
Base Discoun! Rate of 8.5% 1,015,723 -
Discot rafe of 9% (+0.5%) 94,25 {69,473)
Lscotnt rale of 8% (-0.5%) 1,092, 609 76,8860
2, Salary [scalation Rate
Base Salary Escalation Rate of T0% 1,015,723 -
Salary Escalation Rate of 11% (+1%) 1,174,284 163,561
Sulary Escalation Rote of 9% {-1%) B79,744 (135,980)
3. Attrition Rate
Base Attrition Rale of 3.5% 1,015,723 -
Allrilion Rute of £.5% (t1%) 904,327 (19,397)
Attrition Rate of 2.5% (-1%) 1,038,510 22,786




TANGSIEJL HYDRO ENERGY TTMITED

Nates forming part of Accounts for the year ended on 312 December 2015

A2, Repatriation allowance In Ngultrimns
1. Change in Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO) 3122005
DBO at the beginning of the reporting, period -
Current service cost 76,99
Interest cosl -
Past service cosl -
Benefits paid from plan assets z
Benefils paid by employer -
Actuarial (gain)/loss due to plan experience -
Actuarial (gain)/loss due to change in demographic assumptions -
Actuarial (grain)/loss due to change in financial assumptions -
DBO at the end of the reporting period 76,994

2, Statement of Profit or Loss 3‘1{12{2(&15_

"~ Current Service Cost ?ﬁ,':l':’a‘?
Tast service cost -
MNet interest cost an net B liability / (asset) -
Remeasurement (Gain)/T.oss -
Net cost for the year recognised in Profit or Loss 76,994
3. Development of Net Financial position 3112/2015
Defined Benefit Obligation {76:,204)
Tair Value of Plan Assets -
Funded Status - {Deficit)/Surplus {76,5994)
Net Defined Benefit Asset/ (Liability) (76,994)
4. Reconciliation of Net Financial position 31A7/2015

" Net Defined Benefil liability /{assel) at the beginning of reporting o
period
Amount recognized in the Profit or Toss 7o,994
Employer contributions -
Benefits paid by employer -
Net Defined Benefil liability /(asscl) at the end of reporting 76,994
period
5. Expected Benefit Payménts for the year ending Amount
December 31, 2006 44,253_
Docember 31, 2017 47 085
December 31, 20018 A, 054
December 31, 2019 0], 950
Decombier 31, 20020 54,558
December 31, 2021 to December 31, 2025 447,871




TANGSIBJ1 HYDRO ENERGY LIMITED

Notes furming part of Accounts for the year ended on 31% December 2015

"6, Estimated Term of Liability (Years) 15.81

7. Sensitivily Analyses In Nu.
Defined Benefil Net Eiffect on

1. Discount Rale dbligation DHO
Base Discount Rate of 8.5% 76,994 =
Diiscownt yate of 9% (+0.5%) 72,832 (4,162)
Disconnt rate of 8% (-.5%) #1,543 4,549
2, Salary Escalation Rate
Base Salary Escalation Rake of 10% 68,723 i
Satary Escalation Rate of 11% (+1%) 86,693 17,8639
Salary Lscalalion Raete of 9% (-1%) 78,596 G983
3. Attrition Rate
Base Attrition Rate of 3.5% 76,994 =
Attntion Rale of 4.5% (+1%) 70,084 (1,010
Altrition Rale of 2.5% (-1 %) TR166 1,172

A3, Transfer granl In Ngultrums
1. Change in Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO) F1A220m5
DBEO at the beginning of the 1'epu:t1:_1.1g period -
Curvenl service cosl 76,994
Interest cost 5
Past service cost 5
Benefits paid from plan assels
Benefits paid by employer s
Actuarial {gain)/loss due to plan experience =
Actuarial (gain)/loss due to change in demographic assumptions -
Actuarial (gain)/ loss due to change in financial assumptions -
DBO at the end of the reporting perind 76,994
2. Statement of Profit or Loss 31/12/20115
Current Service Cost 76,994
Past service cost -
Met interest cost on net DB liability /{asset) -
Remeasurement (Gain)/ Loss &
MNet cost for the year recognised in Profit or Loss 76,994
3. Development of Net Tinancial position 31/12/2015

Defined Benefit Obligation - (76,994)



TANGSIBJL HYDRO ENERGY LIMITED
Notes forming part of Accounts [or the year ended on 31 December 2015

Fair Value of Plan Assets

Tunded Status - (Deficit) /Surplus (76,994)
Mol Defined Benelit Asset/{Liability) (76,994)
4, Reconciliation of Net Financial position 31/12/2015
Net Defined Benefit liability/ (asset) at the beginning of reporting -
period
Amount recognized i the Profit or Loss o094
Employer contributions -
Benefits paid by employer -
MNel Defined Benefit lability / (asset) at the end of reporting 76,994
period -
5. Expected Benefit Payments for the year ending Amount
T)ecembcr 31, 2016 44,268
Degember 31, 20017 47,1085
December 31, 2018 50,004
Clecember 31, 2019 41,950
Drecember 31, 2020 hd 838
December 31, 2021 ko December 31, 2025 443,871
6. Estimated Term of Liab-ilir:y {Years) 15.81
7. Sensitivity Analyses In Nu.
efined Benefit Net Effect on
1. Discount Rate Dbligation DBO
Base Disconnt Rate of 8.5% 76,994 -
Discoun! rate of 9% (10.5%) 72,832 {4,162)
Discownt vate of 8% (-0.5% al1,543 4 549
2, Salary Lscalalion Rate
Base Salary Lscalation Rafe of 10% 68,723 -
Salary Escalation Rate of 11% (11%) 8,695 17,969
Silary Escnlation Rale af 9% (-1 %) 78,590 4 873
3, Attrition Rate
Buse Alfrition Rate of 3.5% 76,994 =
Altrition Rate of 4.5% (+1%) 75,984 (1,010
Attrition Rate ﬂflﬁ% ~1%} 78,166 1,172



TANGSIBJTI HYDROQ ENERGY LIMITED

Notes forming part of Accounts for the year ended on 31# December 2015

A4 Carriage charges

In Neultrims

1. Change in Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO) 31/12/2015
DBO al the beginning of the reporting period -
Current service cost 5985
Interest cosl =
Past service cost -
Benefits paid from plan assets -
Benelits paid by employer 2
Actuarial (gain)/loss due to plan experience -
Actuarial {gain)/ loss due to change in demographic assumplions -
Acluarial (gain)/loss due to change in financial assumptions -
DB at the end of the reporting period 5,985
2. Statement of Profit or Loss 31/12/2015
" Current Service Cast 5,985
Tasi sarvice cost -
Nel interest cost on net DB liability / (asset) .
Remeasurement (Gain) /T.oss -
Met cost for the year recognised in Profit or Loss 5,985
3. Development of Net Financial position 31/12/2015
Defined Benefit Obligation (5.985)
Fair Value of Plan Assets -
Funded Status - (Deficit) /Surplus (5,985)
Met Defined Benefit Assel/(Liability) (5,985)
" 4. Reconciliation of Net Financial position 31/12/2015
Net Defined Benefit liability / (asset) at the beginning of reporting .
period
Amount recogmized in the Profit or T.oss 5,585
Employer contributions -
Benefits paid by employer .
Net Defined Benefit liability / (asset) al the end of reporting 5,985
period
5. Expected Benefit Payments for the year ending Amuount
 December 31, 2016 5,744
December 31, 2007 b, 830
December 31, 2018 5,919
Decemhber 31, 2019 10,825
Diccomber 31, 2020 5,878
December 31, 2021 to Decomber 31, 2025 30,474




TANGSIB]T HYDRO ENERGY LIMITED
Notes forming part of Accounts for the year ended on 319 December 2015

6. Fstimated Term of Liability (Years) 12,43
7. Sensitivity Analyses In Mu.

Defined Benefit Net Effect on
1. Discount Rate Obligation DBO
Base Discount Rate of 8.5% 5,985 -
Lhiscount rate of 9% (+0.5%) 5,736 (249)
Driscount rute of BY% (-0.5%) f,254 264

2. Rale of increasc in Carriage

Charge

Base Salary Escolation Rale of 5% 5,458 -
Satary Lscilafion Rate of 0% (+1%) 6,588 1,130
Salary Escalation Rale of 4% (-1% 5,620 162

3. Attrition Kale

Buse Attrition Rate of 3.5% 5,985 -
Attrition Rale of 4.5% (+1%) 6,167 182
Altrition Rafe of 2.5% (-1%) 5,780 (205)

Related Party Disclosures

The company is a wholly owned subsidiary company of Druk Green Power Corporation
Limited (DGPC).

Related parties and transactions with them as identified by the Management are given below:

a) Promoter (100% Holding Company) -Druk Green Power Corporation Limited (DGTC)
) Fellow Subsidiaries Companies
i.  Dagachhu [Tydropower Corporation Limited (DHPC)

11. DJ. l]. ].11_{1'3 T.im i.ted. {__d_._-f\-.:___

iii. PBhulan Hydropower Services Limiled (BHSL) Soi—Z ¢
.’;_,'I;. : W _“
0 II_I ] 'r_f|h.llll Fe
N, _,_,,";*3?::

e N e
s



TANGSIB]LLIYDRO ENERGY LIMITED
Notes forming part of Accounts for the year ended on 31# December 2015

MName af Related Party 1'ype of MNature of Transaction Amount
Relationship (Figures in
millions)
Dhruk Green Power Holding Irivestment in Share
Corporation Limited Company Capital (Note 10) 1,019,428,400.00
' Receivable (Nate 9) 98,568.00
Payables (Nole 15) 23,276.25

Dagachhu Hydropower  Fellow Subsidiary Payables (Note 15)
Carporation Timited Compary 67.653.49

¢} Key Management 'ersonnel.

The Key Management Personnel ave those persons having authority and responsibility for
planning, directing and controlling the activities of the entity, directly or indirectly,
including any director (whether executive or otherwise) of thal entity. As such Key
management personnel of the company for the purpose of disclosure of compensation
include Board of Directors and Managing Director,

1. Dasho Yeshi Wangdi (Chairman)

2 Dasho Somam Rinchen (Director)

3. Usyen Mamgyal (Director)

4. Sonam Wangdi ( Director)

5. Karma Chhophel (Managing Dirvector)

51 Mo Particular 20115 {Figures in millions)
1 Managing Director's Remuneration 1.398
2 Directors' Sitling Fees {1.824
3 Travelling Fxpenses (MD) 0.491

Total 2.505

The above remuneration is based on the actual payment.

0, Dstimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not
provided for - Nu. 388,000 million.




TANGSIB[LIIYDRO ENERCY TIMITEL
Nates forming part of Accounts for the year ended on 312t Decem ber 2015

10. During the current year, the company has calculated and accounted deferred tax assets /
liabililies as below:

S5M Particulais Carrying Amount Tax Base of Temporary  Delerred
of Assels/Tiabil Dhfference Tax
Assels/Liabilities ities as  on Asset/ (Tiabi
ason 31122015 31,12 2015 lity)
1 Tlroperty, 4335141879  43,578,711.28 227,292.49 68, 187.75
Plant s
Equipment _
2 Dre-Feasibility 000 1857885257 18,378,952.57 5.513,680.77
Expenses
3 [1IRD Expenditure 332,815.60 110,938.53 221, 877.07 66,563.12
Total 43,684,234.39  62,008,6002,39 18,828,102.13  5,648,4306.64

An amount of Nu. 5,648,436.64 has been accounted as deferred tax income in current year
statement of comprehensive income.

Deferrad tax assets are roviewed at cach reporting date and are reduced to the extent that il is
na longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized.

11, Restatement prior period errors

The errors occurred in recognizing the Deferred Tax Assets (DTA) as repards lo prefeasibility
expenses in the financial statements for the year 2014 of Mu, 5,513,685.77

This has been corrected by restating, the Deferred Tax Assets of Nu. 11 030,313 66 in place of
Nu. 5,516,627.89 under the head non-current assels in the statement of financial position as on
31/12/ 2014 as required by BAS-8 “Accounting Policies, changes in accounting estimates and
error”. Consequently the relained earnings/ (Accumulated loss) in the beginning of the ycar
has also been restated as Nu. 50,597,640.10 in the statement of changes in equity.




TANGSIBJI HYDRO ENERGY TIMITED
Naotes forming part of Accounts for the year ended on 31 December 2015

'Ilie following statutory dues were oulstanding and pending to be deposited at respeclive year
ends:

51 No Particulars 2015(Figures in Ngultrum)
1 TDS Payable (Note 15) 328,971.09
Total 328,971.09

12, Auditors Remuneration:

S1. Mo Parliculars 2015 (Figures in millions)
1 Audit Fees (Note 20) {(1.055
Taotal (0.055

13, Amortized finance cost (origination fecs) of Nu. 2,639,325.65 has been capitalized during the
year in Capital Work in Progress.

{Dasho Yeshi Wangdi)
Chairman THyE & Secretary, MoLA




TANGSIBJI HYDRO ENERGY LIMITED

RATIO Fxhibit-1A

PARTICULARS 215 2014
CURRENT BATIO 2460 a8
Current asset L9762 7 5t.07 39,161,075.87
Currenl lahilites(including provisions) 43,246 07002, 28,433,568300
DEBT EQUITY RATIO . 000 0.0
Trla - -
Equity ST, T, A 213,830,770,75
(Slvare Capital + Frew Beserives)

LIQULD BATIC .23 _ 0,92
Current gsacts 15762, Ta837 A0 IELO7EAY
[ ess Inventorics 1AL 44100 B
Less; Prepuid Expenses 492,44771 11,231.00
Losa: fulvance to Supplicr Contradtor 940,550,191 i 12,950 B72 51

9530, 68410 26, L5 05623
C1__11'|'(_'111 liasbililies ] A2 FRA 07002 25.433,5605 31
FIXELN ASSETS (MND) 10 EQUITY naz 890
Fixed pssals 2417 37082 193072, 544.50
Equity _ 900, LAg 2481 213,830,408
FINFT) ASSETS (NH] TURNOVER 000 (i)
Fixed assets B4 1157082 192,071949,53
lurnover = =

[ TROCE (%) BT -2RA2
PBIT (2641047574 (61,07 F53.76)
Capital Erployed {incloding long term lsans) 02, 165,540,657 RS B 1R
GLNIRATION AND MAINTATHNENCE EXPENSES TO 0010 T
FLECTRICINY REVENUE
Operation d Maintenance seponses (inel cost of Power - -
purchased)

Fleclricity Revienue = -
DIVIDEND PERCENTAGE AL g
Corpuralte dividend i =
Share Capilal S, J S A 213,830,777

TROE ) 353 23R
PAT (31,711,262.81) {50, 57, 640,103
Tutal Shareholders Eouity 400, 168,045,851 1A HU1T0 76
EARNINGS PER SHALE (i8.70) {37201
Pl |;..q.|"] ,? 11 o :an. B 1? {Eﬂ,ﬁ A 040, 'Lﬂ:|
Average Cutstanding Fquity Shares 8,618,841 i Tab e
CASH FLOW FFEICIENCY RATIOS
CASIT FLOW TO TUBNOVER _[].ﬂ_“ (]
Tash from operation (5,307, 7 AL 8759 27045
Turmauer = =

T OPERATIONS TNDEX -A.01 =g
Cash [rnm operation (A5 307,760 440) B 7HLAYG45
PAT (31,711, 26281) (s A0
CASH FLOW RETURN ON ASSETS 010 i
Cash from operation + Tax Paid + Ditarest Vaid (95300, 7h.41) #7099 761G
Tutul Assels Gl 405,035 43 243,304, 338 a




TANGSIB]I HYDRO ENERCGY LIMITED

RATIO ANATLYSIS

Exhihit-1
S1.Ne. Parliculacs 2015 | 2004 Remarks.

A, Iatios for asscssing fnanclal healih {In numbers)

I Tkl Tapuily Ratin .00 000 | The ratio is nil sinee all the expenses are
mieet frem eouity,

I Currant Ratio 260 138 | The percentage increase D current assets
are mnve than the percentage incresse in
current liabilities.

i Lipueiel Rartivs 023 0927 | The ratin has deceased oo account of

B decrease  in current ssscls oand e
denominater  as  cureenl  liahilities s
incteased compared Lo previous year.

v Pt Assels o Equily &2 080 | The ratio has increased due lo dnerease in
fixed asscts but increase i Gxed assels is
mwte than the inerease in eguily.

5 Fisetl Assels 10 TUEROVET 1,01 {01 | The vatie ds ol as theee is oo hirmaver,

B. Tatios fnr assessing ].11'|:|fﬂa |Htih,r|f In percentage)

I Return an Fauity (%) 352 | 2366 | The ratio las ncreased due o decrease in
boss and increase incegquity

Il Return on Capital Employed {%) 293 | 2BRE | The ralio has incredased due te decrease in
losses and increase m capitisl croployed i
mmparisg:n with lasl e

1 Ganeration and Maintenance lgxpunscs to Eleetricity Revenne .01 000 | As there is no electricity révenue during the

{#} yizar st vatio s nil,
v | Dividend to Slare Capital (%) ] Q00| As the company is in levss, the ratio s nil
' Erun.i.np;'s'r*erﬁhare - —["The increase 48 due to deceease in
470 AP | peofity (lnss) a5 numerator and increase in
average number of  oquily shaee as
denominatir.

C Ratios for assessing cash flow effieienicy (in roamn bers)

1 Cash How hemover 1601 I'_I.i‘.II'J: As the company 15 not generating lummoves
s the rabio i nil,

1 Operation Index =10 His b “The ralia is increasing due to increase in
negative cash flows as monesalor an e
other hand the alenominator as PAT is
decreasing in comparison with last year.

1| Cash Mesw relurm on assets —nEn | 00 | The increaseis due la percentage mcrease in |

cash flow fram operation bafore interest
and tax is mere than the percentage increase
in total assets as compared 10 previous year.

f-,f "\

Iﬂ.-l'l




Bonsal & O
(- hanered Accountants

Compliance Checklist ; (Hxtracts from the Companies Act of the Kingdom of Bhutan 2000) Exhjbitﬂ

SL SECTTONS

Pl INCORPORATTON OF COMPANY & MA TERS
INCIDENTAL THERETO

1 7 Alteration of Articles
2 8 Changes of name
3 O lperease ar consolidation of share capital

4 10 Reducliom of share Capital

P-VEE  MANAGEMENT & ADMINISTRATION
5 54 Registered Office of Company

& 5 Publication of name by campany

7 54 Financial year of Companies

B 57 Anmwal return

g 58 Annual General Meeling

10 59 Extracrdinary General Meeting

11 60 Notice for calling General Meeting,

12 61 Chalrman of mecling

13 63 Representation of corporation of meetings
14 £ Ordinary and special resolubions

15 65 Minutes of general meclings and of Board
16 66 Declaration and payment of dividend

17 67 Books of account to be kept by company
18 68 Inspection of books of account

19 68 Arnual Accounts and Balance Sheels

Yes | No | NA Remarks J
A
M.A
B NA
LA
Yos Section Hd sub section 2 -
[ LA
Yes
Yos Section 56 sub section 2 -
MoA
Yeou
Yiog Gection 58 sub section 3 and
4- MNoA
=p N.A.
Yes Secthon 60 sub section 2 and
g- LA
| Yes
M4
| Yes Section 64 suh section 2=
N.A
Yias
| Yes Section b sub secton 3-
_ N.A _
Yes Mo NA | Section &7 Sub section 4 is
Yos, Sub section 1,23-No
sub secton 5-MNA
e Secton 68 sub section 3 -
MLA




Hernwad & Cao.
Chartered Accountasls

Er-:-npliﬂnrre Checklisl ; (Extracts from the Companies Act of the Kingdom of Bhutan 2000) Exhibit-4

as SR TING Yes |No. [N.A Remarks
200 70 Filing of Balance Sheet ete, with the Registrar Yes
21 71 Board's Roport Yes
22 72 Appointment and remaoval of Auditors Section 72 Euhl aechion 1
e part b, sub section 3, 4, 5
anid 6 WA
23 73 Resignation of Auditors from office NLA
24 75 Auditing Standards Yes
95 76 Number of Directors Vs Section 76 sub section 2-
" LA
26 77 Additional Directors ¥
MN.A
27 78 Consent to act as divectors
N.A
28 79 Certain persons not to be appaointed as
directors
Yes
29 30 Resignation by Directors
MNoA
A0 Bl Removal of Directors
MNLA
31 82 Board of mestings
32 83 General powers of Board ¥es
Section B3 sub section 2-
33 84 Kestrictions of powers of Board Yes NLA
34 85 Appointment of Chief Executive Officer N.A
35 86 Appointment of selling or huying agents Ves
36 B7 Mo loans to directors
LA
37 B8 Inter-corporale loans and investments ==
NLA
38 89 Contracts in which directors are interested ;
Yes Section &8 sub section b
39 90 Companies o have secretaries ; and c - N.A
N.A
40 91 Standards of care required by dircclors |




Bonsal & ('
Chartered Accoliitants

Compliance Checklist : (Extracts from the Com panies Act of the k}zng:{nm of Bhutan 2000) Exhibit-4

Place: Fltb.! B-E‘Ld
Date: '_inLi—Hma‘.é!u-'IG

L Ll Yes | No. [N.A Remarks
P-IX STATUTORY RECORD AND INSPECTION
41 | 97 Statutory record and inspection
a. Register of buy-back of shares M. A
b, Register of translers MLA
. Register of charpes i MA
d. Register of Inter-corporate loans - NA =
&, Register of inter-corporale investments NA
f. Register of contracts in which directors are MN.A
inlerested | ol
g Repister of directors o Yes
h. Register of divector’s shareholding LA
OTHERS
42 | 88 Inspection of Statulory Registers Yk
42 Register of Shareholders / Members Yos Cinly one sharehalder
(1GIPC) —

For Bansal & Co,

Firm Registration Number: 001113N)

—— P

Chartered Ace ifs

Membership No. 083030




ADMIMNISTRATION
-General Provisions

Bansal & Cao.
CHARTERED ACUCHIMTANTS

PART VII of the Companies Act of the Kingdom of Bhulan 2000-MANAGEMENT &

Section

Sub-
section

Clause

Yes

Mo

N.A

Remarks

54

Registered Office of Company

Daes the company have registered office in
which all commumnications and nolices are
addressed?

If any change in situation of registered
office, had the notice of change been
intimated to the registrar within 30 days of
approved of Board Of Directors?

Yeg

N.A

L]
n

Publication of name by company

Does the company have its name and
acddress of ils registered office affixed
outside every office or place in which its
business is carried om in a conspichious
place? The board should be written in
legible Dzongkha and English language.

Does the company have its name engraved
o its seal?

Does the company have its name and
address of its registered office mentioned
in-all its business letters, bills, invoices,
notices and other official publications?

Mes

Yes

ey

56

Financial year of the company

Does the company have a uniform
financial year ending on 31* December
every year being the period to which its
balance sheet and profil & loss account
shall relate?

Does the FHist financial year of the
company telate to the period beginning
from the date of incorporation af the
company and ending on 318 Decrmber?
Thereafter does it exceeds 15 months
provided that it may extend to 18 months
where special permission has been granted
in that behalf the Ministry on payment of
fee prescribed in Schedule IV? TF extended

Ten

Yos

1 Jam, 2015 to- 31 Dec, 2005

April 25, 2014
Incorporation Date

liees has been paid in

{204




Ransal & Co.
CHARTERELD ACCONNTANTS

to 18 months  has  permission  been
granted ? Has [ee prescribed in Schedule IV
been paid?

57

Annual Return

Has the company prepared and filed with
the regisirar the annual relurn for the
period relating to the financial year ended
on 3% December containing  the
particulars specified in Schedule X1L

If the company is listed, has the company
filed the annual return with registrar on or
before 315t May if it is unlisted company
has it filed the annual return on or before
31 July every year along with balanee
sheel and profit and loss account for the
year ended 319 December along with the
Auditor's report and Director's report duly
authenticated by al least one director and
CECHL

Annual relum of  year
enced on 31 Dec 2014 has
been filed with ROC on
23,/ 062015

Yes, il owas  filed om
23706/2013,

It is unlisted Co, & annul
refurn with B/5, Pl
Auditor's report,
Miractor's report has liled
with ROC  for  period
ended 31 Dec, 2004, on
23/06/ 2015

58

1 Annual General Meeting

Has the company held in addition to any
other meeoting a general mecting as 1k
annual general meeting? Has it been
specified as such in notice calling the
general meeting?

ls the annual gencral meeling convened on
ar before 300 April il the company is listed
is il corvenad on ot before 300 June if the
campany is unlisted.

Il the annual general meeting is not held
within the time prescribed, is penmission
of the registrar being taken? In such case
the meeting should not be postponed
beyond 30 days. 1s this being complied
with?

In case of a government company, the
business to be transacted in an AGM may
be dene in a Board meeting within the
time famed preseribed. lowever, the
notice calling the meeting shal| refer it as
Board cum Annual General Mecting,

Yes

o5

MN.A

LA

AGHM was held on
06 /05,2015,

It was held within the
prescribed Lime,

59

Extraordinary general meeting

It was held in 28" Aug,_




(R%]

il

The board of directors may conveng an
extra ordinary general meeting to transacl
any special business which may nol wait
till the annual peneral meeting is due to be
leld?

On proceeding duly to call an extra
ordinary general meeting of the company,
has the board of directors made a
requisition of 10% af shareholdars?

Dioes the requisition set oul matters for the
consideration of which the meeting is to bo
called and is it signed by the requisitionists
and has it been deposiled with the
registered office of the company?

If the board does not within 21 days from
the date of receipts if valid requisition |
proceed duly o call a meeting on a day
not later than 45 days from the dale of
requisition. The requisitionists themselves
at the registered office shall call the
mieeting. Is this being followed?

Are all the reasonable expense incurred by
the requisiionists in calling and holding
the meeting being repaid by the company,

‘Matice calling the g[‘.heral meeling

A company may call a general meeting by
giving a notice of not less than 21 days in
writing, Is it being complied with?

If the consent of at least 95% of the
sharcholders are taken, a mealing may be
called by giving a shorter notice Lhan in
GO

15 the notice calling general meeling sent to
all the shareholders, awditor(s) of the
company?

Accidental omission to give notice o, or
the non-receipt  of notice by any
shareholder shall not  invalidate  (he
proceedings of the mesting,

Yes

Yes

Bansal & Co,
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

2014 only. There was no
EGM in 2015,

LA

N.A

LA

A
The invitation letter was
sent an 15th April, 2015
and  subsequently  the
AGM was held on May
06, 2015,
[idn't come across such
siluations.

MNLA
Company has only one
share holder, 13GPC.

NoA




Banzal & Co,
CHARTERED ACCOUIMLIARTS

61

62

Chairman of meeting

I5 the board of directors of the company
appointing as Chairman of the Board of
Diractors, The Chairman of the Board al
Directors shall also be the Chairman of the
General meeting, lailing  him, In the
general meeting; the shareholders can clect
one amongst themselves as the Chairman
shows hands.

Yos

Dashe  Yeshi  Wangdi,
Han'ble Segretary, WoEA
was appointed as
Hon'ble Chairman  and
Board Director on
28008201044,

Saving provision

Naothing in scction 60 and &1 shall apply to
private  company  unless othorwisa
specified in its article in this behalf.

M

The Co. is a public and
not private Co.

(X

Representation  of  corporation  al
meetings

A body corporate If it is a shareholder of a
company may buy resolution of it's board
of direclors authorized a person as il
thinks to fit to act as representative at any
mecting of compaiy,

MLA

Company 5 mnol a
shareholder of a
COTILPAnY,

£

Ordinary and special resolution

A resolution shall be  an ardinavy
resolubion when al a general meeting the
votes cast whether an show of hands or on
a poll in favor of resolution by
shateholders who vote in porson or by
proxy cxceed the wote if any cast against
the resolutions by sharcholders so entitled
and woling. Is this being followed for
considering ordinary resolutions?

A resolution shall be special resolution
when the intcntion to  propose  the
resolution has been duly specified in the
goneral meeting, The vole casts in favar af
the resolution by sharcholders being
entitled so to do vole in pearson or proxy
are not less than three times the number of
votes if any cast against the resolution by
sharehalders, Ts this being followed for
special resolutions?

MLA

BLA

Minutes of general meeting and of Board
Does the company cause minules of all
proceedings of every meeting of its board
of directors or every commillee of board to
be kept by making within 30 days of the
conclusion  of every  such  meeting

Yeu

Tatal 17t Board Meeting
are held Gl date and total
aof 12 Doard Meclings
were convened in 2015,
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comeerned?

Is the eniry being recorded at kept foi thal
purpose with their consecutive mumbered.

4} Is cach page of such book initialed or
signed at last page of the minutes of
cach meeting? Ts it dated and signed in
case af minates of board meeting ar a
committee thereof by the chairman of
the same meeting or the chair of next
succeeding meeting?

b} And in case of general meeting by the
chairman of the same meeting within
30 days of the mecting.

In case of mesting of hoard of directors or
a committee of board does the minute
contain the name of divectors present in
the meeting and also the name of the
directors  dissenting  from  or nol
concurring in the resolution.

Minutes of meeting kept under the section
shall be evidence of proceedings recorded
thergin and unless the contrary is proved
the meeting shall be deemed to duly called
and held,

¥es

Yes

Yes

Yes

Mo

= 1

The Minutes of the Board
Meeting are duly signed
by the Chairman and
hlanaging Director.

AGM May 06, 2015 and
Board Meeting on June
11, 2015,

o6

Declaration and payment of dividend

Mo dividend shall be paid by the company
for any linancial year, excopl out of the
distributable profits of the company for
that year arrived al after providing for
depreciation of oul the profits for any
previous financial year or years.

Distributable profits for this purpose shall
mean accurnulated realised profits so far
as previously not utilised (by way af
dividend ov capitalization) less
accumulated realised losses so far as
previously written off. Unrealized profits
i.e surplus on

For the purpose of section 66, depreciation
shall be as prescribed by the department of

BLA

ML

This is loss making Co. as
of now (B, 2015)
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Revenue & Customs, MaF,

Mo dividend shall be paid except in cash,
chegue and warrant. This subsection does
nat prahibit the capitalization of prafils or
reserve of a company for the purpose of
issuing Mmlly paid up borus shares.

Payment of dividend shall be made within
30 days from the dale of its declaration in
the AGM.

Neclare dividend not paid within 30 days
shall bear interest 15% per annum. |his
will not apply if the address of the
shareholders is uncertain.

A public company shall not pay cividend
if it reduces its net assols below  the
aggregate amount of its called-up share
capital and undistributable reserves such
as sharc premium account,  capilal
redemption reserve, unrealized profils
{less unrealized losses unless previously
written off) and any other reserve which
the company is prohibited from
distributing by any statue or by ils articles
al incorparation.

Yey

MN.A

MLA

ILA

By

Bonks of Accounts to be kepl by

company

Lvery company shall keep at its registered

office proper books of accounts with

respecl Lo

a) All sums of money recoived  and
expended by the company and the
matters respect of which the receipt
and expenditure lake place.

by All sales and purchases of goods by
the company.

¢j The assels and  liabililies aof the
company

The above books may be kept at other
place as the Board of |Nirectars may decide
and such decision shall be intimated o the
Registrar within 7 days given full address
af such place.

Where the company has a branch office,
whether i or outside Bhulan, the
company shall be deemed lo have
complied with the provision of subsection

In 2015, all books of
accounts has been kept in
THyE Corporate Office,
Thimphu and mnot  at
registered office.

Mot {aken approval rom
RO,
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h

(1) if proper books of accounl relating o
the transactions effected at the branch
office are kept at that office and proper
sununarized returns, made up o dates ol
intervals of not more three months, ate
sent by the branch office to the company al
its regislered office or the other place
referred o in sub-section (1)

For the putpose of sub-section (1) & (2),

proper books of accaunt shall be decmed

to be kept with respect to the mallers
specified thercin-

a) If such books are not kept as necessary
to give a true and fair view of the slate
af affairs of the company or branch
office as the case may be, and to
explain its transaction amnq

b} If such books are nat kepl on accrual
busis and according to the double
entry system of accounting

The books of account and olher books and
papers shall be open to inspection by any
director during buisiness hours,

The hooks of accounl of every company

relating to a period of not less than five
years immediately proceeding the current
year together wilh the vouchers relevant to
any entry in such hooks of account shall be
preserved in good order.

g

M

Books are kept ather than
the registered office. and
bools are kept an accrual
basis and according  to
Double entry system.

Because of its only 208
year [rom the
incorporation,

it

Inspection of books of accounts ete. of
companies

The books of accounts and other books of
the paper and statutory records of every
company shall be apen to inspechion
during business hours by (i) the Registrar
or {ii} by any sach officer of Government
s may he authorized by the Government
in this hehalf.

It shall be the duty of every directors,

Yog

The books of account and
other books and papers
are open o inspection
during business hours by
the concerned authorities,
however, till date
inspection was not done.
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other officor or employee of company to
produce to the persom making inspeclion
under subsection (1) all such books of
account and other books and papers of the
company in his custody or control and to
furnish him wilth Ay
statemend /information. ar explanation
relating Lo the affairs of the company as
the said person may require of him within
sich lime and at such place as he may
specify.

If default is made in complying with the
provision of the sechon, the Chief
Hxeculive Officer and every director of the
company  shall  be punishable  with
imprisonment according to the law af Lhe
land and fine which shall be not less than
Nu. 5,000,/-,

Yos

Le

Annual Account and balance shaet

In every Annual General Meeting, does the
board of directors lay before the meeting
the balance sheel as at the financial year
and profit and loss account and cash flow
staterment  for  the year ended 319
December every year?

Is all the above statement being prepared
as to give a true and Fair view of the state
of affairs of the company as at the financial
year and the formals as aid out inSchedule
X A and Sehedule XI0T B?

Are the annual aceounts of the company
being authenticated by nol less than one
director and the CLEO on behalf of the
Board of Nivectors?

Y

i

Sec 69, comply the /Y
2014.

Financial statements have
been prepared as per the
BAS implemented in
Phase 1 give the true &
fair view as per Lthe
principals laid down in
these standards. Schedule
XA & X110 need to be
amended in line with
BAS hased an the LIRS

Chaitrman & CEQ

liling of Balance sheel with the Registrar
After the Balance Sheet, profit and loss
account and the eash tlow statements arve
duly audited and been laid hefore the
armual general meeting a copy thereaf as
well as director’s report shall be file with
the registrar along with the anmual return
under section 37,

Yy

For /Y 2014

Yes il was filed om
23/06,/2015
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Board’s report

Does the ammmal account laid before the
annual general meeting include (a) report
of it's board of directors with rospect to the
state af company’s affairs.

{1} the amount if any which is proposed to
transfer any reserve.,

{¢} the amount if any recommended for
payment of dividend and

{d) the explapation or information on
every reservation qualification for adverse
remark contained in the awditor’s report.

Is the board report being signed by
chairman of board of directors and in
absence heing signed by director including
the CEQ, authorized in this behalf by
baard?

Yasg

Wios

ML A

MLA

MNLA

Appointment and removal of Auditors
1las the company appointed auditor or
joint auditor out of the panel of anditors
maintained by RAA to hold office from the
canclusion of the meeting Hll next annual
general meeting?

The same auditor appointed for more than
{lirec consecutive financial years should be
with the previous writlen approval of
LA AT

In case of government or government
control company the Auditor general of
Bhutan shall be he e officio awditor,

Where at an AGM noe auditors are
appointed or re-appointed the company
shall give notice of this fact to the Minislry
within 7 days of the meeting where upon
the ministry in consolation with RA A shall
appoint  the auditor  and fix  his
remuneration

Has the first auditors of the company been
appointed on the pansl of auditors

s

MoA

M. A

[Repork signed by
Chairman of BO, FoY
2014,
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maintained by RAA? And has  the

remureration been fived by board of
director until the first annual general
mecting?

If an auditor appainted under this section
been removed before expiry of his lerm
only if in the general meeting by a special
resolution with  prior  approval  of
appointing authority in which  the
company shall notify the registrar of the
removal of the auditors within 15 days of
passing of resalution?

Has the anditor proposed to be removed
been given the right to roceive a special
notee of the ammual general meeting at
which solution is to be pul ap ke its
sharehalder regarding his rerooval?

YES

M.A

Remunerabon has been
fixed by RAA,

Resignation of auditox from office
Has a wishing to resign during his term of
uffice piven notice in wrting  and
tlelivered it to the registered office?

Is resignation conaidered by take cffect
from Lhe date of depasit of his resignation
letter to the company unless a laler date 15
specified and is it accompanied by one ar
two statement leading to its resignation?

In case of former, has the auditors been
eiven the right to request the company to
convens an cxtraordinary of 14 days notice
to discuss the circumstances leading to ils
resignation?

MoA

MN.A

74

Power and duties of auditor

Is every auditor of the company being
given the right to access to baaks al
aceounts and records of company?

Has 1he auditors staled whethor he has
ohtained all the informabion to the best of
his knowledge and believe where
necessary for the purpose of his halance
sheet, profit and lass account and the cash
flaw statements are in bools of accounts.

Yig

Yieg

i

Audiling standard
Has the auditor been conducting andit in
accordance  with  generally  accepted
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auditing standard keeping in mind Lhe
general term of reference and minimoam
audit examination and requirement issued
by RAA annexed here to schedule 14
which may be revised and circulated by
the said authority ime to Hme?

76 Numbers of Directors As of now THyE has 5
Minimum number of directors— Public | Yes Board Directaors.
Company-three, Private  Company-two
directors,
Subscribers Lo the articles shall deem to be LA
the directors of the company until the
directors are duly appoinied in AGM.
173 of directors should retire by rotation,
if nol mentioned in the article for the
retirement of all direclors, MN.A
77 Additional Directors MLA
Within the limit fixed for the board by
article, the board may appaint additional
dircctors,
T Consent to act as directors,
Fvery person, wha has left the office of the A
company @a notice signifying  his
candidature for the office of the director,
shall sign and file his consent in writing
acl as a directors as set out in schedule 11
within 30 days of its appointment.
79 Certain persons not to be appointment
directors if;
If he/she is involved or declared as | Yes
insalvent by the court;
Has he/she ever convicted by the court of
a criminal offence;
Is he/she of unsound mind declared?
Is there any outstanding call in respect of
shares held by him/ her?
Is hefshe a director of more than five
companies?
BO Resignation by a Director
Director may resign from his office by | Yes Till date one divector had

giving notice in writing te the company
and such resignation shall be ecffeclive
from the date of receipt thereof except that
of executive officer/s salaricd working

resigned and two other
directors were  teplaced
by the new.
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dirvector,
a1 Removal of Director ;
1 By ordinary resolulion before the expiry of N.A
the period uf his affice.
2 By the sharcholder at least before the
3 General Meeting,.
Hearing on the resolution on receipt of
notice under sub-section {2)
82 Board Meeting )
1 Is the meecting of the Board of directors | Yes Total of 12 Bourd
conducted at least onge in cvery three Meetings wore held in the
months and at least four such meeting in year 2015,
every yenr?
2 Whether notice of meeting has been in [ Yes
writing of not?
Quorum for board meeting shall be 1/37
af total strength or twao directors which-
ever is higher other-wise the meeting shall
stand adjourmed.
Whether the decisions are taken at the
3 board meeting by majority of direclors | Yes
voting in favour of any resolution?
B3 General Powers of the Board
1 | Whether the board of directors are | Yes
exprcising all powers and do all such acts
and things as the company is autharized to
exercise and do;
2 Whether the following powers by the | Yes
directors by means of resolution has been
exercized due o
The powers to make calls on shareholders
in respect of unpaid money
The powers Lo issue debenlures
G The powers 1o borrow money Yeu
The powers to invest the funds of the
cOmpany
The powers to make loans,
Whether the Board has  delegated ils
powers to the committee of directors, the Mo
Chief Executive Officer or any principal
officer of the company.
A4 Restriction on Powers of Board

Whether the Board of Directors without
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I3

the consent of the company has;

Sold, leased or otherwise disposed off the
whale or substantially the whole of the
undertakings of the company.

Remilted or given time for the ropayment
any debt due lo the ditector o the
company.

Borrowed maoney which together with the
company's borrowed money exceeds the
aggregate of the paid up share capital and
the free reserves of the company.

MN.A

BA

Appointment of Chief Executive Officer

Whether ﬂ}e CF) has been appaintled for a
lerm not exceading Hve years and whelher
is CEO in any nther company ar nol;

Yes

My, Karma Chhophel was
appointed as the
Managing Director  of

THyE for the term of 3

years and he doesn't hold
any other office as CEO,

86

Appointment of selling or buying agents

Whether the company has appoinled to
selling / buying agent who is not a citizen
of Bhutan or any foreign company of party
or whether it has been with the approval
of the government an payment of fees
prescribed in schedule IV or not; Company
made any loans to or any other person by?

B7

Mo Loans to Divectors

Any director of the lending company?
Any partnership firm in which any such
director or hig relative is a partner?

Any body corporate at the general mecting
of which not less than 25% of the Lotal
valing power is exercised or controlled by

Mo

any such directar or lwo or more 1']1'1'r!v;l_m'.=:_

HH

&

Interscorporate loan and investments

Has the public company (not being the
holding company)

Made any loan lo any body corporate,
given any guaranies, or provide any
security, in conneclion with a loan made
by any other person, or

To any aother  person by,
corpurate,

Acquired by way of subscription, purchase
or otherwise the shares or convertible
debentares whether fully or party of any
body corporale.

anybody

Mo

89

Contracts  in  which Direciors are
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interested
i Are the direclors entering into contract N:A
withont the consent of the Boacd of
Directors for the sale or purchase of any
goads, materials or services with a director
or his relative or with a partmership firm in
which such divector is a relative?

Has any director disclose the nature of his
2 concern interest to enter into a contract in MLA
the meeting to the Board of Directors?

ther Lhan the private company taken part in
any discussion or vote on any conlract
3 entered into by the company in which he is ML
concerned 7 (His presence will not be
contracting to form a quorum at any Hme
of any such discussion/ vote and if he
does not his vala will be void).

Companies to have secretaries C5 appointed  but its
Ilas {the companies whose paid up share | Yes urdisted company.

capital as over Nu, 100 million and listed
companies) the company appointed
company secretary?

Standard of care required of directors
Ave the directors of the company in the | Yes
exercige of his powers and discharges of
his dutics under the provision or Articles
acting honestly and in good faith in the
best interzst of the company or not?

For Bansal & Co.
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